
 

 

Isaac Williams, Vicar of Elham 1935-57 

The Rev. Isaac Williams had studied at Merton College, Oxford, and the college appointed 

him to the living of Elham in succession to Alard de Bourbel, Vicar since 1900, who had 

lavished money on the adornment of the church.  However when Isaac arrived, he found the 

church roofs in a shocking state and his early focus was on making the church watertight.   

By 1939, this had been accomplished for the body of the church, and the tower was 

releaded in 1948. 

He had founded the Parish Magazine in 1938, and the thoughtful Letters which he wrote for 

it form part of our time-line of the War.   Early in his priesthood he spent two years from 

1911 in upstate British Columbia, establishing a church at Prince George, then a small 

community, which expanded rapidly after the railway arrived.  He always retained an 

interest in the church worldwide. 

He had played cricket for the college at Oxford, and most years, even quite late in life, he 

would field a team of friends against the village team.  One year, an accident while he was 

keeping wicket meant the churchwardens had to search frantically to find a parson to take 

the following day’s services. 

His wife, Emily, had trained as a surgeon, and served for some years as the local Medical 

Officer of Health. 

 



 



 

 
The vicar’s 4 daughters with their Swiss Governess. Folkestone Sea Front 1938 

 

 
The Vicarage Driveway, Elham. Friends, including Audrey Ruston-Hepburn and Audrey 

Holmans having fun. Circa 1939 



 


